








 

 
  

         

 

   
 
 

    
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

    

  
  

  
 

  
  

 
   

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

   
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 

Karen B. Salmon, Ph.D. 
State Superintendent of Schools 

200 West Baltimore Street • Baltimore, MD 21201 • 410-767-0100 • 410-333-6442 TTY/TDD • msde.maryland.gov 

July 13, 2017 

CATS + TORFP R00B7400067- MHEC Microsoft SQL Server 2012 Configuration/Expansion 
Pre-Proposal Conference Notes 

Pre-Proposal Conference held July 7, 2017 at 10:00 am at 200 West Baltimore Street, 8th floor 
conference room 3 and via WebEx.  

Introductions were followed by an overview of the project.  Attendance sheets will be published 
separately along with the notes. 

Gary Kenney, Technical PM overseeing the State Longitudinal Data System (SLDS) Grant provided a 
brief overview of the project.  The SLDS grant projects focus on Evaluation and Research and 
Instructional Support Priority areas through collaboration of the Maryland State Department of 
Education (MSDE), the Maryland Longitudinal Data System Center (MLDSC), the Maryland Higher 
Education Commission (MHEC) and the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation (DLLR).  

This grant is focused on providing and facilitating access to SLDS data, building capacity for utilizing 
SLDS data and implementing strategies to support continuous improvement. 

Parris Jackson, Director of IT with MHEC, spoke briefly about the change from Oracle to Sequel.  
(The TORFP will be revised to accurately reflect that Legacy reports done in COBOL are the actual 
product, not Oracle reports as stated in the TORFP).  Ms. Jackson explained MHEC is working 
through the change to Sequel.  She also mentioned that expertise in SSIS and migration is necessary 
for success of this project.  

MHEC has migrated to a new environment.  This was done internally (In-house with DoIT assistance 
as part of the Enterprise program).  Licenses are all up to date and MHEC is up and running. 
Documentation is available for the resources.  

June Dwyer, Procurement Officer stated that there is a 15% MBE goal for this TORFP. A question 
was raised regarding fulfilling this goal. MSDE cannot tell Offerors how to meet the goal, Offerors are 
required to meet it however they deem appropriate.  

Questions were asked about the TORFP: 

A question was asked regarding the timeline for the project.  MHEC responded that a schedule was 
purposely not done, Offeror/Contractor input is preferred rather than dictating a schedule. 

What edition Sequel server is in use?    MHEC will verify and provide the answer. 

A question regarding Sequel 2012 certification was asked.  Is this mandatory?  What if the resource 
possesses 2016 certification?   MHEC will clarify and respond to this question 

http:msde.maryland.gov


  

  

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

 
     

   
 

  
 

 
     

  
   

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
   

 
 

   
 

 
   

 
   

 
 

    
 

    
    

  
 

 
       

 

TORFP R00B7400067  Pre-proposal conference notes 

There is no labor category on the CATS + contract for a Business Analyst.  What labor category 
should be used?  The labor categories are for the Offeror to propose their selection as they see fit for 
the best match to meet the requirements of the TORFP or to best meet the needs of the project. 

On page 33, section 4.4.1 regarding the documentation for personnel: Is this separate from attachment 
5A and 5B or is it included on those forms?   This is separate documentation regarding writing 
samples.  Provide the best sample that you can of the resources’ writing.  You may redact any 
proprietary information as necessary. 

Section 3.6.2 Development of Reports- System Enhancements – there is nothing on the price form for 
these items.   That is correct, this is all Time and Materials with no fixed price component. 

Section 3.6.1 – What tools are currently used? MHEC is open for suggested tools.  There is nothing 
currently used other than Microsoft.  

Section 4.4.1 – Is a project manager necessary? What role will the Contractor have in supervising and 
managing the staff?   The Contractor is responsible for the resources provided.  MHEC will have the 
day-to-day contact with the resources and will oversee the work.  The contract is with the Contractor 
and not the resources so there will need to be some communication with the Contractor.  The project 
manager is Gary Kenney with oversight by the team at MHEC including Ms. Jackson.  There is a team 
of four currently; a DBA, 2 Computer specialists and an application programmer.  There may be other 
team members added, particularly programmers. 

Does subcontractor experience count toward the Master Contractor’s experience?   Yes. 

A conversation was held regarding the amount of data.  How much data would the resources be 
handling?  That would depend on the unit of measure, bytes, terabytes….   It is not considered to be 
“big” data. 

Are the reports generated public or internal?  The intended audience is legislative, the Executive 
Branch, and leaders.  Data is not pushed out to the public.  Assume the reports are generated internally. 

Section 3.6.4.6 and 3.6.4.7 reference C-Do we want other Sequel data tools?  There is a mention of 
other Sequel Data Tools.   MHEC will clarify this. 

Will the Resources be permitted to work remotely or will all work take place here? It is not 
anticipated that any work will be done remotely due to Security considerations. 

Is there any pii data? There is a possibility. 

What is the intent of the Oral Presentation during the evaluation process? Will there be interviews? 
The intent is to have a group presentation, Master and key resources.  The Master Contractor may 
propose their solution, the resources would each speak to their experience and what they may 
contribute.  There may be clarifying questions asked. 

Do you envision Oracle Business Intelligence at all? We will not be using Oracle BI.  
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TORFP R00B7400067  Pre-proposal conference notes 

Ms. Jackson stated that due to the Enterprise migration to DoIT, MHEC no longer has admin rights to 
the servers.  Service Requests are submitted to DoIT.   There are not SLAs in place, DoIT does 
respond quickly.  

Potential Offerors were reminded that questions may be submitted in writing to the Procurement 
Officer and they will be answered.  

Attendees of the WebEx portion of the conference were asked to email their attendance to the 
Procurement Officer for the record. 

The Pre-Proposal conference adjourned at 11:15 am.  
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